Ty CLEVENGER
21 Bennett Avenue #62
New York, New York 10033
telephone: 979.985.5289 tyclevenger@yahoo.com
facsimile: 979.530.9523 Texas Bar No. 24034380

February 6, 2016

Office of the Chief Disciplinary Counsel
State Bar of Texas

P.O. Box 13287

Austin, Texas 78711

Via electronic submission
Re:  Warren Kenneth Paxton, Jr.; SBOT #15649200
To Whom It May Concern:

On or about August 1, 2014, Erica Gammill filed a grievance with the Office
of Chief Disciplinary Counsel (“OCDC”) concerning Warren Kenneth Paxton, Jr.
(mislabeled “Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr.””), SBOT #15649200. A copy of that
complaint is attached as Exhibit 1 (its internal exhibits are marked alphabetically,
while the exhibits to this letter are marked numerically). I incorporate Ms. Gammill's
grievance and its exhibits by reference.

In her grievance, Ms. Gammill noted that Mr. Paxton admitted in writing and
under oath that he had solicited investment clients without being registered as an
investment advisor. State law classifies solicitation by an unregistered investment
advisor as a third-degree felony. Notwithstanding Mr. Paxton's admission of felony
misconduct, OCDC dismissed Ms. Gammill's grievance.

On or about July 28, 2015, after Ms. Gammill's grievance was dismissed, a
Collin County Grand Jury indicted Mr. Paxton for soliciting a client without being
registered as an investment advisor. See Exhibit 2. The grand jury further indicted Mr.
Paxton for securities fraud. /d. 1 have attached a copy of my March 6, 2015 letter to
the grand jury, see Exhibit 3, and I incorporate it herein by reference.

As that letter explains, Mr. Paxton repeatedly violated a statute that he voted
for as a legislator, and even after he was sued for violating the statute. In other words,
Mr. Paxton's violations appear to be deliberate. In light of the grand jury indictment,
and the presiding judge's refusal to dismiss the indictment, it is quite evident that the
OCDC should not have dismissed Ms. Gammill's grievance. The 2012 incident
named in the indictment occurred less than four years ago, therefore limitations is no
obstacle to bringing a disciplinary proceeding. Moreover, the standard of proof for a
state bar proceeding is far lower than that for a criminal proceeding. If the grand jury



concluded that there is sufficient evidence to bring a criminal charge, OCDC cannot
plausibly claim that it has no basis for opening an investigation.

I request that OCDC initiate disciplinary proceedings against Mr. Paxton for
all of the violations alleged in the attached indictments, including the allegations of
securities fraud.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

Ty Clevenger



Exhibit 1



Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr.
(rievance Narrative

Complainant Erica Gammill submits this Grievance Narrative in support of her
Complaint against Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. (Texas Bar Card No. 15649200).

I.  Introduction

Mr. Paxton has committed multiple violations of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Conduct over the course of the last decade—including Rules 1.06, 1.08(a), 8.04(a)}(2), and
8.04{2)(3). He has engaged in several acts of Professional Misconduct that require an
appropriately serious disciplinary sanction, potentially including disbarment.

In sum, Mr. Paxton violated Disciplinary Rule 1.06(b)(2), by representing a client when
that representation reasonably appeared to be adversely limited by his own financial interests and .
by his obligations to a third person; Rule 1.08(a), by entering into a business transaction with 2
client without fully informing the client of the terms of the transaction and obtaining consent;
Rule 8.04(a)2), by committing a criminal act that reflects adversely on his honesty, -
trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer in other respects; and Rule 8.04(a)(3), by engaging in

conduct involving deceit, dishonesty, fraud, or misrepresentation.



Factual Background

Mr. Paxton is a lawyer licensed to practice law in Texas.' He represented Teri Goettsche
and referred her and her husband to an investment manager who paid him a secret kickback,
which he hid from the Goettsches.

In 2006, Teri Goettsche hired Mr. Paxton to represent her to prepare a post-nuptial
agreement between herself and her husband, David Goettsche. During the course of this
representation, Mr. Paxton encouraged Ms. Goettsche to hire Frederick Mowery (“Mowery”) and
Mowery Capital Management, LLC (*“MCM”) to manage her financial investments. Ms.
Goettsche subsequently entered into an Investment Advisory Agreement with Mowery and
MCM, under which MCM managed the stock, bond, and mutual fund investments of Ms;.
Goettsche. Upon Mr. Paxton’s recommendation, approximately a year later David Goettsche also

entered into an Invesiment Advisory Agreement with MCM and Mowery.

! According to the State Bar website, Mr. Paxton was licensed on November 1, 1991. Mr. Paxton
also happens to be the Republican nominee for Attorney General. I assume that that status is
irrelevant to a fair, impartial evaluation of this grievance by the Office of Chief Disciplinary
Counsel (OCDC). All lawyers, famous or infamous, must comply with the Disciplinary Rules. It
should also be noted that the OCDC filed a disciplinary petition against another current candidate
for Attorney General, Jamie Balagia, the Libertarian Party nominee.
hitp://www.expressnews.com/news/local/amicle/ AG candidate-UW-Dude-sued-by-State-Bar-
5514685 php. See Exhibit A (Commission for Lawyer Discipline disciplinary petition against
Jamie Balagia). Political affiliation also must be irrelevant to the OCDC’s classification and just-
cause decisions. For the OCDC to pursue discipline against the Libertarian nominee for Attorney
General during the election season, but fail to pursue these obvious violations by the Republican
nominee clearly would undermine public trust and confidence in the lawyer-discipline system.
The same would be true of any Democratic nominee or the nominee of any other political party.
Discipline must be nonpartisan and blind to party affiliation and political status. Moreover,
members of both political parties have pointed out Mr. Paxton’s misconduct. See Exhibit B (Dan
Branch for Attorney General press release); Exhibit C (Barry Smitherman for Attorney General
advertisement, available at

https:/fwww. youtube.com/watch7v=qLUAmGK InE& feature~youlube&noredirect=1); Exhibit D
(Dan Branch for Attorney General advertisement, available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3MvgaEithwl.8).



At the time that Mr. Paxton solicited his client, Teri Goettsche. to retain Mowery and
MCM, he was secretly acting as a paid investment advisor representative for MCM. At the time, —
both Mr. Paxton and Mowery concealed that relationship and fee arrangement from the

Goettsches. As an investment adviser representative, Mr. Paxton received 30 percent of MCM’s

quarterly investment management fee for referring Ms. Goettsche (and later Mr. Goettsche) to |
MCM.

Mowery did not disclose the commission arrangement with Mr. Paxton to the Goettsches
until approximately July 2006, over two and a half years after Mr. Paxton first steered the
Goettsches to MCM.” Mr. Paxton never disclosed the relationship or his fee arrangement with
MCM. He dishonestly concealed his MCM fee-kickback from his client.

In July 2009, the Goettsches sued Mr. Paxton for breach of fiduciary duty and breach of

duty of loyalty, The Goettsches’ Original Petition and Request for Disclosure is attached hereto

? Attached hereto as Exhibit E is a copy of the July 2006 letter from Mowery to the Goettsches
informing them that “Ken Paxton has acted as a solicitor and will receive a certain portion of
those management fees.” Note that some of the acts described in this grievance occurred several
years ago, and other acts are very recent. However, Complainant did not learn of Mr. Paxton’s
misconduct until those acts became public during the 2014 Republican primary. During that
process, Mr. Paxton’s opponents, State Representative Dan Branch and Barry Smitherman,
publicly disclosed that Mr. Paxton had engaged in criminal misconduct. See Exhibit B (Dan
Branch for Attorney General press release); Exhibit C (Barry Smitherman for Attorney General
advertisement, available at

hitos:/www . yostabe comfwaleh?vagl 0hmGEIpE& fenure=youtu bedonoredivect=1); Exhibit D
(DDan Branch for Attorney General advertisement, available at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3MvqaEihwl.8). Because Complainant learned of those acts
only recently, under Texas Rule of Disciplinary Procedure 15.06D, the general four-year
limitations provision does not bar any of these charges. As Rule 15.06D states, “[wlhere fraud or -
concealment is involved, the time periods stated in this rule do not begin to run until the
Complainant discovered, or in the exercise of reasonable diligence should have discovered, the
Professional Misconduct.”



as Exhibit F.* The Petition outlines how Mr. Paxton concealed his financial relationship with
MCM with the Goettsches, and therefore never obtained consent from Ms. Goettsche as her _
attorney to enter into this financial transaction with her.*

The Paxton-Mowery scheme severely damaged the Goetisches. At Mowery’s suggestion,
the Goesitches heavily invested in real estate development and heavy construction equipment
purchasing ventures with a company operated and owned in part by James H. “Jim” Moore, HL
But Mowery concealed from the Goettsches that he owned a significant percentage of Moore’s
company and that Moore owed creditors more than $33 million. In addition, despite Mowery’s -
assurances that their investment funds were being deposited into a limited liability company (or
another business entity with Hability protection), Mowery invested the Goettsches’” funds into
general partnerships and joint ventures that he created, making the Goettsches personally liable -
for the agreements and promissory notes that Mowery then entered into. As a consequence of
Mr. Paxton’s and Mowery’s misrepresentations and concealment of the truth, the Goettsches
suffered serious financial losses.

Mr. Paxton acted as an investrent adviser representative for MCM. Section 12.B of the
Texas Securities Act therefore required Mr. Paxton to register with the Texas Securities Board
before he referred the Goettsches (or anyone else) to MCM.® In flagrant violation of his legal 7

duty, Mr. Paxton failed to register and to make that public disclosure as an investment adviser

? The Petition also alleges causes of action against Mowery and MCM for commen law fraud,
negligent misrepresentation, breach of fiduciary duty, and breach of duty of loyalty.
* Exhibit F at 4.

3 Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. art. 581-12.B (“A_person may not act or render services as an
investment adviser representative for a certain investment adviser in this state unless the person
is registered or submits a notice filing as an investment adviser representative for that particuiar
investment adviser as provided in Section 18 or 12-1 of this Act.”’) (emphasis added). A copy of
that statute is attached as Exhibit G.




representative for MCM. He concealed his commission-based affiliation with MCM and his
direct financial interest in his referrals of clients to MCM. By failing to register as required by
the Texas Securities Act, Mr. Paxton committed a third degree felony under Section 29.1 of the
Texas Securities Act. Section 29.1 provides:

Penal Provisions. Any person who shall: . . . L. Render services as an investment adviser |

or an investment adviser representative without being registered as required by this Act
shall be deemed guilty of a felony of the third degree.®

(Emphasis added.)

On May 2, 2014, Texas Securities Comimissioner John Morgan signed and entered “
Disciplinary Order No. IC14-CAF-03, in The Matter of The Investment Adviser Representative
Registration of Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. A copy of that Disciplinary Order is attached hereto

as Exhibit H. Mr. Paxton signed a sworn acknowledgement of this Disciplinary Order on April

30, 2014. He “knowingly and voluntarily consent[ed] to the entry of the foregoing [Disciplinary]
Order and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Undertaking contained therein . . . .”

The Findings of Fact in the Disciplinary Order included the foliowing:

“MCM is . . . aregistered investment adviser.”

¢ Paxton “solicited potential chients for MCM,” including while “MCM was a state-
registered investment adviser . . ..”

e Paxton “was compensated by MCM for each solicitation resulting in a client relationship

with MCM.”

e Paxton “successfully solicited . . . clients for MCM at times when MCM was a state-

registered investment adviser but [Paxton] was not registered as an investment adviser

® Tex. Rev. Civ. Stat. Ann. arts. 581-29.1.



representative_of MCM. These solicitations occurred in 2004, 2005, and 2012

(Emphasis added.)

e “Section 12.B of the Texas Securities Act . . . prohibits a person from acting as _an

investment adviser representative for a certain investment adviser in Texas unless the

person is registered as an investment adviser representative for that particular investment

adviser.” (Emphasis added.)
The Conclusions of Law in the Disciplinary Order included the following:

s Paxton “violated Section 12.B of the Texas Securities Act by acting as an investment

adviser representative for MCM when MCM was registered as an investment adviser

with the Securities Commissioner but [when Paxton] was not registered as an investment -

adviser representative of MCM.”

(Emphasis added.)

Indisputably, by Mr. Paxton’s swom acknowledgement to the findings and conclusions in -
that Disciplinary Order, he admitted to conduct that constitutes a third degree felony. That
conclusion is inarguable. As discussed below, Mr. Paxton’s sworn admissions also make crystal
clear that he has violated Disciplinary Rule 8.04{a)(2), which prohibits a lawyer from '
committing a “serious crime or commit[ting] any other criminal act that reflects adversely on the
lawyer’s honesty, trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer in other respects.”

As the Disciplinary Order makes evident, Mr. Paxton’s secret and illegal exploitation of |
the Goettsches was not his only violation of the Texas Securities Act. His course of conduct of
flouting the Texas Securities Act continued for years. He solicited clients for MCM on various

occasions from 2004 to 2012. But Texas Securities Board records confirm that he was registered



as an investment adviser representative for MCM starting only on December 18, 2013.” For over -
eight years, Mr. Paxton flagrantly violated Texas law. Under those circumstances, his multi-year
pattern of criminal violations certainly “reflects adversely” on his “trustworthiness” and “fitness”
as a lawyer. Lawyers are not supposed to violate the law-—ever—much less for eight years in an
ongoing course of conduct that misleads and takes advantage of clients.
H. Disciplinary Rule Violations
A. Violation of Disciplinary Rule 1.06(b)(2) — Conflict of Interest.

By entering into a kickback referral-fee arrangement with MCM while also acting as Ms.
Goettsche’s attorney, Mr. Paxion violated the fundamental prohibition against conflicts of
interest contained in Disciplinary Rule 1.06. Rule 1.06(b}2) provides:

In other situations and except to the extent permitted by paragraph (c), a lawyer shall not

represent a person if the representation of that person . . . (2) reasonably appears to be or

become adversely limited by the lawyer's or law firm's responsibilities to another client or
to a third person or by the lawver's or law firm’s own interests.

(Emphasis added.)

In 2001, the Texas Supreme Court’s Professional Ethics Committee (“PEC”) strongly
condemned a virtually identical arrangement between a lawyer and an investment adviser in -
Opinion 536.° In this opinion, an investment advisory firm proposed to enter into an arrangement
with a lawyer under which the firm would pay the lawyer a referral or solicitation fee for
referring clients to the investment firm. The referral fee was to be a percentage of the investment

advisory fee paid to the investment firm—exactly the same type of arrangement that Mr. Paxton

TA copy of Mr. Paxton’s registration record with the Texas Securities Board is attached hereto
as Exhibit L.

¥ A copy of Opinion 536 is attached as Exhibit J.



had with MCM. The Committee ruled that the arrangement violated the conflict-of-interest
prohibition of Disciplinary Rule 1.06(b)(2).

The Committee concluded that the lawyer’s own financial interest would adversely limit
the lawyer’s representation of the client. Specifically, the Commitice noted that the lawyer had a
strong, personal financial incentive to refer the client to the investment firm—even if that was
not in the client’s interest. That’s exactly what happened when Mr. Paxton referred the
Goettsches to MCM—Mr. Paxton made a killing through his secret kickback referral-fee—and
the Goettsches ended up in a disastrous investment.

B. Violation of Disciplinary Ruie 1.08(a) — Contflict of Interest: Prohibited Transaction.
Mr. Paxton also violated Disciplinary Rule 1.08(a) by entering into a business transaction
with his client Ms. Goettsche. Disciplinary Rule 1.08(a) provides:

A lawyer shall not enter into a business transaction with a client unless: _

(1) the trapsaction and terms on which the lawyer acquires the interest are fair and

reasonable to the client and are fully disclosed in a manner which can be reasonably

understood by the client;

(2) the client is given a reasonable opportunity to seek the advice of independent counsel

in the transaction; and

(3) the client consents in writing thereto.

When he referred Ms. Goettsche to MCM and subsequently received a referral fee, M.
Paxton entered into a business transaction with Ms. Goettsche. Yet Mr. Paxton concealed the
true transaction. He therefore violated the requirements of Disciplinary Rule 1.08(a). Mr, Paxton -
never disclosed to Ms. Goetische that he would be receiving a referral fee from MCM or that he
was in any way financially affiliated with the investment firm.

Mr. Paxton also failed to give Ms. Goettsche a reasonable opportunity to seek the advice

of independent counse! before secretly profiting from her engagement of the investment firm that

was paying him. Further, Ms. Goettsche never consented to Mr. Paxton receiving any type of



referral fee as a result of her hiring MCM. In short, Mr. Paxton violated every requirement of
Rule 1.08(a).

C. Violation of Disciplinary Rule 8.04(a)(3) - False, Misleading, and Deceptive
Statements.

M. Paxton also violated Disciptinary Rule 8.04(a)(3). The rule provides:

A lawyer shall not . . . (3) engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud. deceit or
misrepresentation . . . . '

(Emphasis added.)

By failing to disclose to Ms. Goettsche that he would be recetving a financial kickback
for referring her to MCM, Mr. Paxton intentionally hid his relationship and financial interest
from Ms. Goettsche. That is the essence of deceit and misrepresentation and dishonesty.
Obviously, Mr. Paxton did not want Ms. Goettsche to know of his financial arrangement with
MCM because, quite naturally and sensibly, she might have doubted the value and legitimacy of '
his referral. Therefore, to ensure that Ms. Goettsche entered the investment advisory agreement
with MCM and that he received his kickback referral fee, Mr. Paxton deliberately hid the truth.
Mr. Paxton’s conduct was egregiously dishonest, deceitful, and unethical.” The violation of Rule |
8.04(a)3) 1s clear.

D. Violations of Disciplinary Rule 8.04(a)(2).
As described above, based upon Mr. Paxton’s sworn acknowledgement, the Texas State

Securities Board has already found that Mr. Paxton violated Section 12.B of the Texas Securities

® Cf. Hoover Slovacek LLP v. Walton, 206 S.W.3d 557, 560-61 (Tex. 2006) (“In Texas, we hold
lawyers to the highest standards of ethical conduct in their dealings with their clients. The duty is
highest when the attorney contracts with his or her client or otherwise takes a position adverse o
his or her client’s interests. As Justice Cardozo observed *[a fiduciary] is held to something
stricter than the morals of the marketplace. Not honesty alone, but the punctilio of an honor the
most sensitive, is then the standard of behavior.”)}.



Act by failing to register as an investment adviser representative.'” That violation fits exactly the
terms of the third degree felony under Section 29.1 of the Texas Securities Act.'" Accordingly,
Mr. Paxton has also violated Disciplinary Rule 8.04(a)(2), which prohibits a lawyer frornr
“commit{ting] any other criminal act that reflects adversely on the lawyer's honesty,
trustworthiness or fitness as a lawyer in other respect.”
iIf.  Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons, Complainant respectfully submits that Kenneth Warren
Paxton, Jr. has engaged in multiple acts of sertous Professional Misconduct in violation of the
Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct, that this grievance should be classifted as a
complaint, that Just Cause should be found, and that following an evidentiary-panel hearing or

district court trial, Mr. Paxton should receive an appropriate disciplinary sanction, including

disbarment.

1 See Exhibit H.

' Section 29.1 of the Texas Securities Act provides as follows: “Penal Provisions. Any person
who shail: . . . L. Render services as an investment adviser or an investment adviser

representative without being registered as required by this Act shall be deemed guilty of a felony -
of the third degree.” (Emphasis added.)






FILED
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Denna Kay McKinnay

Bexar County District Clerk
Accepted By: Roxanne Mujica

COMMISSION FOR § IN THE DISTRICT COURT

LAWYER DISCIPLINE, §

Petitioner §
§

V. § 288TH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
§

JAMES MORRIS BALAGIA §

Respondent § BEXAR COUNTY, TEXAS

ORIGINAL DISCIPLINARY PETITION

TO THE HONORABLE JUDGE OF SAID COURT:
COMES NOW the Commission for Lawyer Discipline, Petitioner, and would respectfully

show the following:

L
DISCOVERY CONTROL PLAN
Discovery proceedings in this cause should be conducted pursuant o a scheduling order
entered by ffhe Court pursuant to the agreement of the parties or as determined by the Court to be .
apéropriately tailored to circumstances of this disciplinary action, pursuant to Tex,R.Civ.P. Rule

1904.

118
PARTIES
The Petitioner is the Commission for Lawyer Discipline, a committee of the State Bar of

Texas.

EXHIBIT “A”



~ The Respondent, JAMES MORRIS BALAGIA, State Bar Number 00783589, is an attormey
licensed to practice Jaw in the State of Texas and is a member of the State Bar of Texas. Respondent
may be served with citation through his attorney of record, Royal K. Griffin, 1507 Fredericksburg

Rd., San Antonio, Texas 78201.

IIL
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
The cause of action and the relief sought in this case are within the jurisdictional
requirements of this Honorable Court.
Venue of this case is proper in Bexar County, Texas pursuant to Texas Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure Rule 3.03, because Bexar County is the county of the Respondent’s residence or principal

place of practice,

Iv.

PROFESSIONAL MISCONDUCT

Petitioner brings this disciplinary action pursuant to the State Bar Act, Tex.Govt.Code
§81.001 ef seq., the Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct and the Texas Rules of Disciplinary
Procedure. The complaint which initiated these proceedings was filed by Jill Marie McKeown. The

acts and omissions of Respondent, as hereinafter alleged, constitute professional misconduct.

V.
FACTUAL BACKGROUND
Jill McKeown and her daughter, Veronica Abrams, were stopped by law enforcement for a

2



traffic violation while driving through Panhandle, Texas in November 2011, A subsequent search of
their vehicle resuited in the discovery of $50,000.00 in cash. McKeown and Abrams were arrested,
the vehic_l_e was impounded and the cash was seized by law enforcement. McKeown and Abrams
were charged with money laundering and forfeiture actions were soon commenced aginast the
vehicle and the cash.

- Respondent was hired to represent McKeown a.nd Abrams on felony federal money
laundering charges in state court, in the state court forfetivre action for the vehicle and in a federal
forfeiture case referred to the Drug Enforcement Agency {“DEA”) regardng the cash. McKeown and
Abrams agreed to pay Respodent a total, combined fee of $10,000.00 for the representation,
Respondent accepted an initial payment of $5,000.00 from a third party and agreed to be paid the
additional $5,000.00 at a later date from funds that may be recovered in the cash forfeiture case.

In July 2012, the DEA paid $50,000.00 1o Respondent, representing the full amount of the
cash forfeiture. Respondent failed to promptly notify McKeown and Abrams or any other party that
he had received the forfeiture funds. Respondent charged and collected a contingent fee on the cash
funds seized by the DEA but failed to have the agreement reduced to writing. Upon the conclusion of
the forfeiture case, Respendent failed 1o provide McKeown and Abrams with a writien statement
describing the outcome of the matter and showing the remittance to the client and the method of its
determination.

In February 2013, after conclusion of the legal matiers Respondent was handling for
McKeown and Abrams, Respondent paid $9,500.00 of the cash forefeiture funds to Mike Nolanand
retained the balance. Respondent failed to deliver any portion of the cash forfeiture funds to

McKeown and Abrams.



VI

DISCIPLINARY RULES OF PROFESSIONAL CONBUCT

The facts alleged herein constitute a violation of the following Texas Disciplinary Rules of

Professional Conduct;

Rule 1.14(b): Upon receiving funds or other property in which a client or third person has an
interest, a lawyer shall promptly notify the client or third person. Except as stated in this Ruie
or otherwise permitted by law or by agreement with the client, a lawyer shall promptly
deliver to the client or third person any funds or other property that the client or third person
is entitled to receive and, upon request by the client or third person, shall promptly render a
full accounting regarding such property,

Rule 1.04(d): (d) A fee may be contingent on the outcome of the matter for which the service
is rendered, except in a matter in which a contingent fee is prohibited by paragraph (e) or
other law. A contingent fee agreement shall be in writing and shall state the method by which

~ the fee is to be determined. If there is to be a differentiation in the percentage or percentages
that shall accrue to the lawyer in the event of settlement, trial or appeal, the percentage for
each shall be stated. The agreement shall state the litigation and other expenses to be
deducted from the recovery, and whether such expenses are to be deducted before or after the
contingent fee is calculated. Upon conclusion of a contingent fee matter, the lawyer shall
provide the client with a written statement describing the outcome of the matter and, if there
is a recovery, showing the remittance to the client and the method of its determination.

._ PRAYER

WHEREF ORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Petitioner prays that a judgment of proﬁ:ssional
miﬁconduct be entered against Respondent, that this Honorable Court determine and impose an
appropriate sanction, including an order that Respondent pay reasonable attorneys’ fees, cosﬁ of

court and al} expenses associated with this proceeding. Petitioner further prays for such other and

additional relief, general or specific, at law or in equity, to which it may show itself entitled.



Respectiully submitted,

LINDA A. ACEVEDOQ,
Chief Disciplinary Counsel

STEPHANIE STROLLE,
Assistant Disciplinary Counsel

Office of the Chief Disciplinary Counset
State Bar of Texas
711 Navarro, Suite 750
San Antonio, Texas 78203
Telephone: (210) 208-6600
FAX: (210) 208-6625
.Stephanie. Strolle(@texashar.com

By: s
STEPHANIE STROLLE
State Bar No, 00785069

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER



ORDER OF THE SUPREME COURT OF TEXAS
Misc. Docket No. 14-9070

Appointment of a District Judge to Preside
in a State Bar Disciplinary Action

The Supreme Court of Texas hereby appoints the Honorable Pete Gomez, Jr., Judge of the
112th District Court, Upton/Crockett/Pecos/Reagan/Sutton Counties, Texas, to preside in the
Disciplinary Action styled:

Commiission for Lawyer Discipline v. James Morris Balegia
to be filed in a District Court of Bexar County, Texas,

The Chief Disciplinary Counsel shall promptly forward to the District Clerk of Bexar County,
Texas, a copy of the Disciplinary Petition and this Order for filing pursuant to Rule 3.03, Texas Rules
of Disciplinary Procedure, '

As ordered by the Supreme Court of Texas, in chambers,

With the Seal thereof affixed at the City
of Austin, this #xh-day of April, 2014.

Pyt A Mol

BLAKE HAWTHORNE, CLERK
SUPREME COURT OF TEXAS




This assignment, made by Misc. Docket No. 14-9070, is also an assignment by the Chief
Justice of the Supreme Court of Texas pursuant to Texas Govemment Code, § 74.057.

Signed this ﬁj\«_ day of April, 2014.

Nathdn L, Hecht o
Chief Justice

Misc. Docket No. 14-9070 Page 2
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Exhibit C (Barry Smitherman for
Attorney General advertisement,

available at
https:/ ﬁag ww.voutube.com/watch?
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Exhibit D (Dan Branch for Attorney
General advertisement, available at

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=
3MvgaEihwl.8) |
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Mowery CapimarL MavagEMENT, LLC
18680 Daszss Faowey, Bune 1600, Daiias, Teus TERSE
Tol: STRSIEFE0G  Puw OTESIRTES

Friday, Yol 28, 3008

Dear

You bave retained Mowery Caplial Managerent, LLO to miEre cortain assets oy you, The
Investment Advisory Agresment you signed provided for guarierly faes 1o be paid w Mowery

The State of Texas reguires that we notify you thet Ken Pastton hes acted as 2 solicttor and will
receive & covtaln purtion of those management Toes. Please scknowledge by signing and
retmming the atfeched Sclicitor Agresment,

- Thank you for your business and please fee] fres to oall with any questions,

L P

AT FoOslian, FLaaiasg Binpvasuial PORTROLIR BEANAGEMENT
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MOWERY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

G880 Darias Pannwey, U 1600, Dallal, Theas TRO4E
Teb GFH-SI00054  Pam BPL-S15.7745

Monday, September 25, 2006

Dear

You have indicated concern with the mansgement of your sccount; specifically in reference o
the feo shering srrangement we have with Mr, Ken Paxton,

Mowery Capitel Mansgerment receives & manzgement fee as per your conirest. My, Paxton
receives 8 perceniage of Mowery Capitsl Manspement’s quertesly invesiment mansgement fee
for cortain chients weforved to us. This for amangement was & verbel arrangement hatween My
Paxton and us and therefore no documentetion exdsts, Mz Pacion is wot aow, and never has
been, privy o any personsl or acoount information of any Mowery Capltal Management client
without the client’s permission. M. Paxton did not direct any investments or participats in the
management of your sccount.

Please find attached a performuance repart for sach of vour sceounts. This report detalls the
sccount performance as well as mansgement fees. Mr. Paxton wes paid 90 percent of thess fees,

You may contact the Texas State Secwrities Beoard for the spplicatle regulations.

We feel we will be unable to resolve your concerns and must resign s the investment Manager
for your secounts. Your sceounts are held at Worth Pinancial Group, plesse contact MY, Clark’
(465 9184287y and detmmaine your wext steps with him, '

This resignstion is effective as of the date of this letter. We will prosate and credit your scoounts
with the remsining & days of management fees in this quarter, We thank vou for vour business
and wish you success in your future investment endsavors,

Fasdiny Foaria, Prasmes {HUTIDUEAL FRRTRALID WANAGEMEWT
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08 July 27 P5:06
Gary Fitzsimmons
District Clerk
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CAUSE NO. ““ UB-UBL0E Datlas District

BAVID GOETTSCHE and
TERI GOETTSCHE,
Plaintifls,

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF

VS,

MOWERY CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT, LLC; FREDERICK E.
MOWERY a/k/a FRITZ E. MOWERY,
INDIVIDUALLY; and WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, JR. a/k/a
KENPAXTON

DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

Lo r T e e 4 e R Ly R R R Rl

Defendants. ST UPICIAL DISTRICT

PLAINTIFFS® ORIGINAL PETITION AND REQUEST FOR DISCLOSURE

TG THE HONORABLE JUDGE OF SATD COURT:

COMES NOW PLAINTIFES, DAVID GOETTSCHE and TERI GOETTSCHE, referred to
herein as Plaintiffs, complaining of and against MOWERY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC; |
FREDERICK E. MOWERY a/k/a FRITZ E. MOWERY, INDIVIDUALLY: and WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, IR. a/k/a KEN PAXTON, herein referred to as Defendants, and in support
thereof would show unto this Honorable Court as follows:

A. DISCOVERY CONTROL PLAN

i. The Plaintitfs in this suit allege discovery should be conducted under Level 2 of the
Texas Rules of Civil Procedure,
B. FARTIES
2, Plaintift, DAVID GOETTSCHE, is an individual residing in Dallas County, Texas,

The last three digits of his Social Security number arc

3 Plaintiff, TER]I GOETTSCHE, isan individual residing 1 Dallag County, Texas. The

last three digits of ber Social Security number are |

EXHIBIT “p>



4, Defendant, MOWERY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC, isa Texas limited liability |
company, and may be served with process by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, by serving
its registered agent, Frederick E. Mowery, at 201 W, Virginia Street #200, McKinney, Texas 75248. ‘

5. Defendant, FREDERICK E. MOWERY a/k/a FRITZ MOWERY, is an individual
residing in Collin County, Texas, who may be served with process of service by Certified Mail,
Return Receipt Requested, at 2507 Saint Remy Drive, McKinney, Texas 75070-4761.

6. Defendant, WARREN KENNETH PAXTON, JR. a/k/a KEN PAXTON, is an
individual residing in Collin County, Texas, who may be served with process of service by Certified
Mail, Return Receipt Requested, at 5613 S. Woodcreek Circle, McKinney, Texas 75070,

C. JURISDICTION & VENUE

7. The Court has jurisdiction over the Defendants because Defendants are Texas
residents. The court has jurisdiction over the controversy because the damages are within the
jurisdictional limits of the Court.

8. Venue is proper in this county as the contract was executed in Dallas County, Texas.

D. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

g, Plaintiff Teri Goettsche secured the services of Defendant WARREN KENNETH
PAXTON, JR. a/k/a KEN PAXTON (hereinafter referred to as “Paxton”) to prepare a post-nuptial _
agreement. During the course of preparing the post-nuptial agreement, Paxton recommended and
encouraged Teri Goettsche to hire FREDERICK E. MOWERY a/k/a FRITZ MOWERY (hereinafter
referred to as “Mowery”) and MOWERY CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, LLC (hereinafter referred .
to as “Mowery Capital”) to manage both her separate assets and community assets subject to her sole

management.
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10.  Teri Goetische entered into an Investment Advisory Agreement (the “Investment
Agreement”) with Mowery and Mowery Capital. Mowery and Mowery Capital managed stock,
bond, and/or mutual fund investments for Plaintiff Ter Goettsche for approximately one year before
Plaintiff David Goettsche entered into an Investment Advisory Agreement with Mowery and
Mowery Capital.

11, Mowery and Mowery Capital introduced Plaintiffs to and encouraged Plaintiffs to -
invest in real estate development and heavy construction equipment purchasing ventures owned in
part and operated by James H. *Jim” Moore, Illl. Mowery, however, owned part of at least one of
these entities (High Point Construction & Development, LLC) and was at that time and is currently
registered with the Texas Secretary of State’s Office as a Manager of High Point Construction &
Development, L1.C.

12, Atthe time Mowery and Mowery Capital encouraged Plaintiffs to invest in ventures
owned in part by Jim Moore, the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Northern District of Texas
supervised Moore’s assets. Moore filed a voluntary petition for relief in the bankruptcy court on |
May 2, 2006, owing creditors more than $33 million. Moore’s assets - including heavy earth-moving
equipment titled in his name and in which Moore sought outside capital investment - were subject
to the bankrupicy court’s automatic stay as of that date. See 11 U.S.C. § 362.

13.  Moore represented to Plaintiffs that any investment share they took in any of Moore’s
ventures would be a percentage interest in a limited Hability company or another business entity with
liability protection. Rather, Moore created general partnerships and joint ventures with Plaintiffs’
capital contributions and entered into agreements and promissory notes in the entity’s name, making

Plaintiffs personally liable on entity debt.

Plaintiff"s Original Petition and Request for Disclosure Page 3



14, On or about July 28, 2006, Mowery Capital and Mowery notified Plaintiffs that,
unbeknownst to Plaintiffs, Paxton was a solicitor on behalf of Mowery Capital and had acted as such
when advising Plaintiffs to entrust their assets to the management of Mowery and Mowery Capital.
In consideration for his services soliciting business on Mowery Capital’s behalf, Paxton received a
portion of Mowery’s fee for managing Plaintiffs’ investments. Neither Paxton nor Mowery or 7
Mowery Capital disclosed to Plaintiffs before that time that Mowery shared his fee with Paxton.

15. Upon learning that Paxton had acted as a solicitor on behalf of Mowery Capital,
Plaintiffs requested that Mowery provide documentation of the previously undisclosed relationship -
between Mowery Capital, Mowery, and Paxton, along with the identity of the state agency having
oversight of the business conducted by Mowery Capital.

16. Onorabout September 25, 2006, Mowery and Mowery Capital notified Plaintiffs that -
the fee agreement between Mowery Capital, Mowery, and Paxton was a verbal agreement and that
Paxton received one-third (1/3) of the two percent (2%) management fee paid by Plaintiffs on each
of Plaintiffs’ accounts held by Mowery Capital. The notice further stated that Mowery did not think 7
that Plaintiffs’ concerns could be resotved and Mowery Capital and Mowery resigned as investment
manager for Plaintiffs’ accounts and transferred all Plaintiffs’ accounts to Worth Financial Group.
Mowery’s notice stated nothing about any sums Plaintiffs invested in entities, ventures, or
partnerships in which he or Jim Moore were part-owners.

L. COUNT1-COMMON LAW FRAUD

17. Plaintiffs replead and reallege each allegation in paragraphs 1 through 16, as if fully

set forth herein,

18.  Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital represented to plaintiffs that Jim Moore’s

Plaintiff’'s Original Petition and Reguest for Disclosure Page 4



business ventures were trustworthy investments. Further, Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital
represented that Moore’s personal character was sufficiently reliable to make Moore’s business -
ventures a sound investment,

19. Defendants’ representations to Plaintiffs were material because they caused Plaintiffs
to invest in Moore’s business ventures. Had Mowery and Mowery Capital never introduced
Plaintiffs to Moore nor encouraged Plaintiffs to invest in Moore’s business ventures, Plaintiffs would
not have had the opportunity to lose money in Moore’s business ventures because they would have
kept their savings in more prudent investments.

20, Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital’s representations to Plaintiffs were false
statements of opinion that Defendants knew to be false. Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital
represented to Plaintiffs that Jim Moore's business ventures were trustworthy investments, Further,
Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital represented that Moore's personal character was
sufficiently reliable to make Moore's business ventures a sound investment. Specifically, they knew ‘
because of Mowery’s service as a member-manager in High Point Construction & Development,
LLC, that Moore owed millions of dollars to various creditors and either had declared or would soon
declare bankruptey.

21, Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital made the false representation either
knowingly or recklessly, as a positive assertion, and without knowledge of its truth. Moore’s
financial status, of which Mowery should have been aware because of his position as both a director -
in High Point Construction & Development, LLC, as well as his close personal relationship with
Moore, indicated that he was not trustworthy, that his business ventures were not sufficiently

capitalized, and that individuals should not invest in his ventures. Mowery and Mowery Capital |

Plaintifi’s Qriginal Petition and Request for Disclosure Page §



knew that other referrals sought refunds of their initial investments and recruited new investors for
Moore with false representations to sufficiently capitalize Moore’s ventures to refund other |
mvestors.

22.  Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital both intended for Plaintiffs to rely on and
had reason to expect that Plaintiffs would act in reliance on their representations. Mowery’s status
as an investment advisor necessarily suggests that his clients would follow his investment advice.
Plaintiffs followed Mowery and Mowery Capital’s advice and invested in Moore’s business ventures. 7

23, Plaintiffs relied on defendant’s false representations when they invested in Jim
Moore’s business ventures.

F. COUNT 2 - NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION

24, Plaintiffs replead and reallege cach allegation in paragraphs 1 through 24, as if fully
set forth herein.

25.  Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital represented to plaintiffs that Jim Moore’s -
business ventures were trustworthy investments. Further, Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital
represented that Moore’s personal character was sufficiently reliable to make Moore’s business
ventures a sound investment.

26.  Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital made the representation in both the course
of their business and in the course of a transaction in which they had an interest. Mowery and
Mowery Capital worked as investment advisors who agree to identify investments for clients and
potential clients, assess investments’ relative risk, and counsel clients about prudent ways in which
they should invest. Additionally, Mowery and Mowery Capital took a two percent (2%) fee on any _

returns Plaintiffs earned from investments identified by Mowery and/or Mowery Capital. However,

Plaintiff's Original Petition and Request for Disclosure Page 6



Mowery served as a part owner of at least one of Moore’s business entities in which he advised _
Plaintiffs to invest, receiving at least a 10 percent (10%) ownership interest in the partnership created
to develop residential real property near Mineols, Texas.

27.  Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital made its representations about Moore’s -
character and the quality of his business ventures for the guidance of others, Specifically, as alleged
above, Mowery and Mowery Capital were in the business of advising clients in which vehicles they
should invest their money., Mowery and Mowery Capital made its representations in an attempt to
guide the Plaintiffs info investing in Jim Moore’s business ventures.

28.  Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital in no way used reascnable care or
competence in obtaining information on which to base their representations regarding Jim Moore’s |
character, business expertise, and the quality of Moore’s business ventures. Had they performed a
background check on Moore, who personally obligated himself on part of the business ventures’
debt, they would have found that Moore declared bankruptcy in 2006, Moreover, to the extent
Mowery and Mowery Capital advised Plaintiffs to invest funds in Moore’s business ventures before
Moore filed bankruptey, they would have known by virtue of Mowery’s service as a member-
manager in High Point Construction & Development, LLC, that Moore owed millions of dollars to
various creditors.

29.  Plaintiffs justifiably relied on Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital’s -
representations when they invested in Moore’s residential real estate development in Mineola, Texas,

G. MOWERY & MOWERY CAPITAL’S BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

30.  Plaintiffs replead and reallege each allegation in paragraphs I through 29, as if fully -

set forth herein.

Plaintiff"s Original Petition and Reguast for Disclosure Page7



3t A fiduciary relationship existed between Plaintiffs and Defendants Mowery and
Mowery Capital at the time of the misrepresentations, omissions, and tortious conduct set forth
above, such that Defendants owed Plaintiffs a duty to fairly and honestly advise Plaintiffs. Sucha

duty prohibits self-dealing.

32, Defendants Mowery and Mowery Capital each breached their respective fiduciary
duties when they advised Plaintiffs to invest in business ventures in which Mowery had an

ownership interest.

33, Inaddition to Plaintiffs® damages, set forth more fully below, Defendants Mowery

and Mowery Capital’s breach of fiduciary duty benefitted Defendants in the following ways:

a. Mowery’s share of Moore’s business ventures in which Plaintiffs invested
became more profitable;

b. Business ventures in which Mowery had a personal interest were, as a result,
better capitalized; ‘

c. Business ventures in which Mowery had a personal interest were able to, with

Plaintiffs’ capital confribution, repurchase ownership interests from other
investors; and

d. Because other investors were able to sell back their ownership interest in
Moore’s business ventures, Mowery and Mowery Capital were able to avert
other potential claimants from filing claims.

H. PAXTON'S BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY

34.  Plaintiffs replead and reallege each allegation in parégraphs I through 34, as if fully

set forth herein.

35.  Paxton’s liability for breach of fiduciary duty stems from his status as the Plaintiffs’

attorney. Paxton’s State Bar of Texas number is 15649200,

36. A fiduciary, attorney-client relationship existed between Plaintiffs and Defendant

Plaintif’s Original Petition and Request for Disclosure Page 8



Paxton at the time of the misrepresentations, omissions, and tortious conduct set forth above, such
that Paxton owed Plaintiffs a duty to deal fairly, honestly, and equitably in making decisions
regarding any interest in Mowery Capital and to disclose all material facts relating to Paxton’s |

relationship with Mowery Capital and Mowery to Plaintiffs.

37.  Paxton breached his fiduciary duty to Plaintiffs by failing to disclose his agreement
to share Mowery and Mowery Capital fees that Mowery and Mowery Capital collected from clients

Paxton referred.

38, Paxton’s breach of fiduciary duty injured Plaintiffs by essentially stripping them of
their ability to consent to an agreement to split fees between Paxton and a non-lawyer. Paxton’s
breach benefitted him by providing him with one-third (1/3) of the two percent (2%) fee Mowery

and Mowery Capital collected on the Plaintiffs’ capital gains and/or return on investment.

L. BREACH OF DUTY OF LOYALTY

39.  Plaintiffs replead and reallege each allegation in paragraphs 1 through 38, as if fully

set forth herein.

40.  Defendants breached the duty of loyalty owed to Plaintiff under the law when
Defendants failed to disclosure their interest in Moore’s business ventures and their relationship with _
each other. Defendants’ duty of loyalty required that they place Plaintiffs’ interests above their own.
Defendants’ actions are representative of their breach of their duty of loyalty when they utilized their
own position to benefit themselves at the expense of the Plaintiffs. Defendants conduct was unfair .
to Plaintiffs, thus representing a self-dealing transaction further evidencing Plaintiffs’ claim of a

breach of fiduciary duty.
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41, In addition fo Plaintiffs’ damages, set forth more {ully below, Defendants Mowery

and Mowery Capital’s breach of the duty of loyalty benefitted Defendants in the following ways:

a. Mowery’s share of Moore’s business ventures in which Plaintiffs invested
became more profitable;

b. Business ventures in which Mowery had a personal interest were, as a result,
better capitalized;

c. Business ventures in which Mowery had a personal interest were able to, with -
Plaintiffs’ capital contribution, repurchase ownership interests from other
investors; and

d. Because other investors were able to sell back their ownership intetest in
Moore’s business ventures, Mowery and Mowery Capital were able to avert
other potential claimants from filing claims.

42, Paxton’s breach of the duty of loyalty injured Plaintiffs by cssentially stripping them
of their ability to consent to an agreement to split fees between Paxton and a non-lawyer, Paxton’s
breach benefitted him by providing him with one-third (1/3} of the two percent (2%) fee Mowery |

and Mowery Capital collected on the Plaintiffs” capital gains and/or return on investment.
J. DAMAGES
43.  Plaintiffs seek unliquidated damages within the jurisdictional limits of this court.

44.  Defendants’ fraud, negligent misrepresentation, breach of fiduciary duty, and duty

of loyalty caused injury to Plaintiffs, which resulted in the following damages:

a. Plaintiffs are now personally liable on a promissory note held by Capital One
Bank (Hibernia Nationa! Bank is the predecessor-in-interest on the note).
Plaintiffs received no property from Moore’s business ventures with which
to collateralize the loan; '

b. Plaintiffs lost the amount of their initial capital investment in Moore’s
business ventures, specifically those ventures involving the development of
residential real property in or necar Mineola, Texas;

c. Because of these liabilities, Plaintiffs paid sums on their obligations to avoid
adverse effects to their credit rating. Plaintiffs seek the amounts of payments

Plaintiff's Original Petition and Request jor Disclosure Page 10



made on these obligations between the time of the fraud or misrepresentation;

d. Plaintiffs seek a refund of the investment management fees paid to Mowery,
Mowery Capital, and/or Paxton as a result of Plaintiffs’ investments in
Moore’s business venlures;

e. Time spent investigating the impact of Moore’s, Mowery’s and Mowery
Capital’s misrepresentations o Plaintiffs;

f Physical pain and mental anguish in the past and future; and

g. Past lost wages.

K. JURY DEMAND

45.  Plaintiff demands a jury trial and tenders the appropriate fee with this petition.

L. REQUEST FOR DISCLOSURE

40, Pursuant to TEX. R. C1v. P. 194, you are requested to disclose, within fifty (50) days

of service of this request, the information or material described in Rule 194.2 (a)-(b).

M. DOCUMENTS TO BE USED

47.  Pursuant to TEX. R. Civ. P. 193.7, Plaintiffs intend to use all documents exchanged
and produced between the parties including, but not limited to, correspondence and discovery

responses during the trial of the above-entitied and numbered cause.
N. PRAYER

48. Plaintiffs hereby plead for all actual damages, a full accounting, and any remedies

allowed by law, including but not limited to forfeiture, for the Defendants’ breach of fiduciary duties.

49, Plaintiffs further plead for all attorneys fees incurred at trial or appeal, costs of court,

plus pre- and post-judgment interest in the maximum amounts allowed by law.

Plaintifi"s Original Petition and Reguest for Disclosure Page 1!



Respectfully submitted,
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JOHN DJ SLOAN R

State T3dr No. 18505100

ALAN J, ROBERTSON

State Bar No, 24067952

SLOAN, BAGLEY, HATCHER & PERRY Law FIRM
101 East Whaley Street

Post Office Drawer 2909

Longview, Texas 75606

Telephone: {903) 757-7000

Facsimile: (903) 757-7574

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS
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Art. 581-12. REGISTRATION OF PERSONS SELLING SECURITIES OR
RENDERING INVESTMENT ADVICE.

A. Except as provided in Section 5 of this Act, no person, firm, corporation or
dealer shall, directly or through agents, offer for sale, sell or make a sale of any
securities in this state without first being registered as in this Act provided. No
agent shall, in behalf of any dealer, sell, offer for sale, or make sale of any
securities within the state unless registered as an agent for that particular
registered dealer under the provisions of this Act.

B. Except as provided by Section 5 of this Act, a person may not, directly or
through an investment adviser representative, render services as an investment
adviser in this state unless the person is registered under this Act, submits a notice
filing as provided by Section 12-1 of this Act, or is otherwise exempt under this
Act. A person may not act or render services as an investment adviser
representative for a certain investment adviser in this state unless the person is
registered or submits a notice filing as an investment adviser representative for
that particular investment adviser as provided in Section 18 or 12-1 of this Act.

C. The Board may adopt rules and regulations exempting certain classes of
persons from the dealer, agent, investment adviser, and investment adviser
representative registration requirements, or providing conditional exemptions from
registration, if the Board determines that such rules and regulations are consistent
with the purposes of this Act.

Acts 1957, 55th Leg., p. 575, ch. 269, Sec. 12.

Amended by Acts 1995, 74th Leg., ch. 228, Sec. 7, eff. Sept. 1, 1995; Acts 2001,
77th Leg., ch. 1091, Sec. 2.08, eff. Sept. [, 2001.
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JOHN MORGAN BETH ANngKWOOD

SECURITIES COMMISSIONER
DERRICK MYTCHELL

RONAK V. PATEL MEMBER
DEPLITY SECURITIES COMMISSIONER & WALLY KINNEY
.. MEMBER
o gﬁ;&,?&n?g?sﬁgtar %.XQ’S State S ecurities @Od?’(f DAVID A APPLEGY
A ietn, Toxas 787912407 ALAN WALDROP
F:;?;ie{s(g)z?ggﬁegggﬂ Vv ¢b. state b us MEMBER
IN THE MATTER OF §
THE INVESTMENT ADVISER § Order No, IC14-CAF-03
REPRESENTATIVE REGISTRATION §
OF KENNETH WARREN PAXTON, JR. §

TO:  Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. (CRD No. 4691201)
206 South Kentucky Street, Suite 201
McKinney, Texas 75069

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
Be it remembered that Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. (‘Respondent’), appeared
before the Securities Commissioner of the State of Texas ("Securities Commissioner")
and consented to the entry of this Order and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of
Law contained herein.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. Respondent has waived (a) Respondent's right to notice and hearing in this
matter; {b) Respondent's right to appear and present evidence in this matter; (c)
Respondent’s right to appeal this Order; and (d) ali other procedural rights
granted to the Respondent by The Securities Act, Tex. Rev. Civ, Stat. Ann. arts.
581-1 to 581-43 (West 2010 & Supp. 2013)("Texas Securities Act"), and the
Administrative Procedure Act, Tex. Gov't Code Ann. §§ 2001.001 to 2001.902
(West 2008 & Supp. 2013)("Administrative Procedure Act"),

Background

2, On December 18, 2013, Respondent registered with the Securities
Commissioner as an invesiment adviser representative of Mowery Capital
Management, LLC ("MCM"). This registration is currently effective.

3. MCM is iocated in Texas and is a registered investment adviser. From October
13, 2004 to November 8, 2008, MCM was registered with the Securities
Commissioner as an investment adviser. In November 2008, MCM transitioned
from state registration to federal registration. To that end, on November 8, 2008
MCM registered as an investment adviser with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. On June 25, 2012, MCM transitioned back to state registration and
is currently registered as an investment adviser with the Securities
Commissioner.

EXHIBIT “H”



1C.

Referral of Clients for State-Registered investment Adviser

Respondent occasionally solicited potential clients for MCM. Some of these
solicitations occurred when MCM was a state-registered invesiment adviser and
others when it was federally-registered.

Pursuant to an agreement with MCM, Respondent was compensated by MCM
for each solicitation resulfing in a client relationship with MCM. Specifically,
MCM agreed to pay Respondent 30% of the asset management fees collected
by MCM from each client that Respondent solicited successfully.

Respondent successfully solicited three (3) clients for MCM at times when MCM
was a state-registered investment adviser but Respondent was not registered as
an investment adviser representative of MCM. These solicitations occurred in
2004, 2005, and 2012.

Section 4.P of the Texas Securities Act defines an “investment adviser
representative’, in part, as “each person or company who, for compensation, is
employed, appointed, or authorized by an investment adviser to solicit clients for
the investment adviser.”

Saction 12.B of the Texas Securities Act, in part, prohibits a person from acting
as an investment adviser representative for a certain investment adviser in Texas
uniess the person is registered as an investment adviser representative for that
particular investment adviser.

The clients soiicited by Respondent for MCM paid annual asset management
fees ranging from 1% to 1.95% of assets under MCM's management. Such fees
were collected by MCM on a quarterly basis. Thereafter, Respondent was paid a
portion of the fees.

Respondent relied on MCM fo disclose the compensation arrangernent to
potential clients that Respondent solicited for MCM.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

At times between 2004 and 2012, Respondent was an ‘“investment adviser
representative” of MCM as the term ‘investment adviser representative” is
defined by Section 4.P of the Texas Securities Act.

Respondent violated Section 12.B of the Texas Securities Act by acting as an
investment adviser representative for MCM when MCM was registered as an
investment adviser with the Securities Commissioner but Respondent was not
registered as an investment adviser representative of MCM.

Pursuant to Section 14.A(8)} of the Texas Securities Act, Respondent’s violation
of Section 12.B of the Texas Securities Act constitutes a basis for the issuance of
an Order reprimanding Respondent.

Digcipfinary OrderfKenneth Warren Paxton, Jr./Page 2



day of

Pursuant to Section 23-1.A{3) of the Texas Securities Act, Respondent’s violation
of Section 12.8 of the Texas Securities Act constitutes a basis for the issuance of
an Crder assessing an administrative fine.

UNDERTAKING

If Respondent, for compensation, soficits a potential client for any registered
investment adviser, Respondent undertakes and agrees to provide a written
disclosure document (“Disclosure Document”) to each such client.

Respondent further undertakes and agrees that the Disclosure Document will
include:

a. The name of the investment adviser,

b. The nature of the relationship, including any affiliation, between
Respondent and the investment adviser,

c. A statement that Respondent will be compensated for his solicitation
services by the investment adviser; and

d. The terms of such compensation arrangement, including a description of
the compensation paid or to be paid to Respondent.

Respondent further undertakes and agrees that Respondent will provide the
Disclosure Document to any potential client before such person becomes a client
of the investment adviser.

ORDER

it is therefore ORDERED that Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. is hereby
REPRIMANDED.

It is further ORDERED that Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. is hereby ASSESSED
AN ADMINISTRATIVE FINE in the amount of One Thousand Dotlars
($1,000.00). Payment shall be made by delivery of a cashier's check to the
Securities Commissianer in the amount of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00},
payable to the State of Texas, contemporaneously with the delivery of this Order,

It is further ORDERED that Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr. comply with the terms of
the Undertaking with the Securities Commissioner enclosed herein.

SIGNED AND ENTERED BY THE SECURITIES COMMISSIONER this g”-ﬁ/
LM_ . 2014,

/
iﬁ:MOR(z:/_—————-

Securities Commissioner
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Approved as to Form:

Ronak V. Patel = “_
Deputy Securities Commissioner

A

Clinton Edgar
Attorney
Inspections and Compliance Division

Disciplinary Crder/Kanneth Warren Paxton, Jr./Page 4

Respondent:

i, pm;?f

Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr.

e TR

e

P

Gene R. Besen
Attorney for Respondent



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

52 (. |

On the D _ day of /me/ , 2014, Kenneth Warren Paxion, Jr.
("Respondent”) personally appeared before me, executed the foregoing Order, and
acknowledged that:

1. Respondent has read the foregoing Order and Undertaking;

2. Respondent has been fully advised of his rights under the Texas Securities Act -
and the Administrative Procedure Act;

3. Respondent knowingly and voluntarily consents to the entry of the foregoing
Order and the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Undertaking
contained therein; and

4, Respondent, by consenting to the entry of the foregoing Order, has knowingly
and voluntarily waived his rights as set forth therein.

i, RUBY BRANDS /
“ Notary Public. State of Texas 7 B L Q/
My Commission Expires /f//é?// ‘a?ff/flé/ .

iy
"ﬁ." G Fabruary 29, 2016 i
s A RV} Notary Publi¢’in and for

the State of _ 7 v ¢
My commission expires on A AT 2o/ 4

[affix notary seal here]
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Professional Ethics Committee, TX Eth. Op. 536 (2001)

TX Eth. Op. 536 (Tex.Prof.Eth.Comm.). 2001 WL 557898
The Supreme Court of Texas

Professional Ethics Committee
Opinion Number 536
May 2001

QUESTION PRESENTED

*1 May a lawyer receive referral or solicitation fees from an investment adviser for referring a client to the investment
adviser?

STATEMENT OF FACTS

An investment advisory firm (“Investment Adviser”) that is registered under the U.S. Investment Advisers Act of. 1940
(“Advisers Act”) and the Texas Securities Act of 1957 (“Texas Act”) and qualified to provide investment advisory services in
Texas under the Texas Act proposes to enter into an arrangement with a lawyer concerning an investment advisory program
(the ““Program™) provided by the Investment Adviser. Under the Program, the Investment Adviser will pay the lawyer a
referral or solicitation fee for referring clients to the Investment Adviser. The referral fee will be a percentage of the fees paid
by the client to the Investment Adviser for investment advisory services throughout the period that the client’s funds are
invested.

The lawyer’s involvement in the Program is proposed to be limited to (i) providing clients with materials describing the
Program, (ii) introducing the client to the Investment Adviser’s registered personnel and attending meetings at which the
Investment Adviser’s personnel will explain the Program to the client and assist the client in choosing the investment
advisory services that best fit the client’s investment advisory needs, and (iii) receiving copies of periodic investment
advisory statements so that the lawyer may monitor the client’s involvement in the Program. It is assumed for the purposes of
this opinion that the participating lawyer and the Investment Adviser comply with all legal requirements under the Advisers
Act and the Texas Act and with all other legal requirements applicable to a relationship of this nature.

We have been advised in the opinion request that the Securities and Exchange Commission has taken the position that the
person providing solicitation services for a fee (in this situation the lawyer) is not required to register as an Investment
Adviser under the Advisers Act if certain conditions are met, including the requirement that the solicitation fee is paid
pursuant to a written agreement which: a) describes the solicitor’s activities and compensation; b) contains the solicitor’s
undertaking to perform those duties consistent with the Investment Adviser’s instructions; and c) requires the solicitor, -at the
time of the solicitation, to provide the client with a copy of the Investment Adviser’s disclosure document, and a separate
written disclosure document that sets forth certain information about the Investment Adviser, the solicitor and the
arrangement. Accordingly, the arrangement between the Investment Adviser and lawyer, including the solicitation fees to be
received by the lawyer, is disclosed to the client prior to his entering into the Program and the client acknowledges receipt of
such information.

DISCUSSION

*2 The referral fee arrangement described above raises conflict of interest issues under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct (the ““Rules™), as discussed below.

Rule 1.06(b)(2) provides that:
“(b) In other situations and except to the extent permitted by paragraph (c), a lawyer shall not represent a person if the
representation of that person:

(2) reasonably appears to be or become adversely limited by the lawyer’s or law firm’s responsibilities to another client or to

Mext
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a third person or by the lawyer’s or law firm’s own interests.”

Since the lawyer will receive fees from the Investment Adviser for recommending the Investment Adviser to the lawyer’s
client, the lawyer might advise the client to choose one approach to investing if there were no fee arrangement with the
Investment Adviser, while the lawyer might be swayed by the promise of a solicitor’s fee to give different advice in order to
receive a fee. Comment 4 to Rule 1.06 cautions that loyalty to a client is impaired in any situation when a lawyer may not be
able to consider, recommend or carry out an appropriate course of action for a client because of the lawyer’s own interests.

The obligation to provide independent advice to each client is an essential element of a lawyer’s relationship with the client
that is reinforced by Rule 2.01, which provides:

“In advising or otherwise representing a client, a lawyer shall exercise independent professional judgment
and render candid advice.”

In this regard, the facts indicate that the lawyer will sign an agreement with the Investment Adviser undertaking to perform
his duties consistent with the Investment Adviser’s instructions. And following the lawyer’s initial counseling of the client
that results in a referral to the Investment Adviser, if the client agrees to participate in the Program the lawyer thereafter
receives from the Investment Adviser copies of periodic investment advisory statements related to the client’s investments so
that the lawyer may monitor the client’s involvement in the Program. A client cannot reasonably expect to receive
independent professional judgment from his lawyer when such lawyer is contractually obligated to perform his duties
consistent with the Investment Adviser’s instructions, and his monitoring of the client’s involvement in the Program results in
additional solicitation or referral fees to the lawyer.

This referral arrangement constitutes a conflict of interest under Rule 1.06(b)(2) because the lawyer’s representation
reasonably appears to be adversely limited by the lawyer’s own financial interests and by his obligations to a third person, the
Investment Adviser.

Before accepting or continuing a representation that involves a conflict of interest under Rule 1.06(b), the lawyer must satisfy
the requirements of Rule 1.06(c), which provides:

“(c) A lawyer may represent a client in the circumstances described in (b) if:
*3 (1) the lawyer reasonably believes the representation of each client will not be materially affected; and

(2) each affected or potentially affected client consents to such representation after full disclosure of the existence, nature,
implications, and possible adverse consequences of the common representation and the advantages involved, if any.”

Under this Rule, the lawyer must first reasonably determine whether the arrangement with the Investment Adviser will
materially affect the lawyer’s representation of the client. Comment 5 to Rule 1.06 notes that:

“[A] lawyer’s need for income should not lead the lawyer to undertake matters that cannot be handled
competently and at a reasonable fee .... If the probity of a lawyer’s own conduct in a transaction is in
question, it may be difficult for the lawyer to give a client detached advice.”

With respect to determining whether a client can provide effective consent to a conflict of interest, Comment 7 to Rule 1.06
cautions that:

“IWihen a disinterested lawyer would conclude that the client should not agree to the representation
under the circumstances, the lawyer involved should not ask for such agreement or provide representation
on the basis of the client’s consent.”
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It is the opinion of the Committee that the standards of Rule 1.06(c) cannot be met under these circumstances. Because the
client’s participation in the Program could continue for a substantial period of time and the lawyer has contractual obligations
to the Investment Adviser, the lawyer could not reasonably believe that this arrangement with an Investment Adviser would
not materially affect his representation of the client. For example, the on-going fee arrangement to the lawyer from the
Investment Adviser would create a financial inducement for the lawyer to avoid a critical appraisal of the Investment
Adviser’s on-going services that might lead to a recommendation that the client terminate such advisory services. Moreover,
the inherent uncertainties involved in an lawyer monitoring his client’s involvement in the Program over a period of time
would make it impossible for the lawyer to provide full disclosure of the implications and possible adverse consequences
resulting from the representation.

CONCLUSION

A lawyer’s receipt from an Investment Adviser of solicitation fees that continue while the lawyer’s client continues to receive
services from the Investment Adviser violates Rule 1.06(b)(2) because the lawyer’s representation of the client would be
adversely limited by the lawyer’s own financial interests and his obligations to the Investment Adviser. Under -these
circumstances the lawyer could not satisfy the requirements of Rule 1.06(c).

TX Eth. Op. 536 (Tex.Prof.Eth.Comm.), 2001 WL 557898

End of Document © 2014 Thomsen Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Government Works.
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THE STATE OF TEXAS ciry NOREA STROH THOMPSON

V.
WARREN KENNETH PAXTON, JR.

IN THE 416™ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS

BOND:

OFFENSE: In connection with the sale, offering for sale or delivery of, the
purchase, offer to purchase, invitation of offers to purchase, invitations of
offers to sell, or dealing in any other manner in any security or securities,
engaging in fraud or fraudulent practice in violation of Texas Securities
Act, Section 29(C)(Joel Hochberg).

INDICTMENT

IN THE NAME AND BY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

THE GRAND JURY for the County of Collin, State of Texas, duly
selected, impaneled, sworn, charged and organized as such by the 416%™
District Court for the said County at the July Term, A.D. 2015 of the said
Court, upon their oaths present in and to said Court that WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, JR., hereinafter styled Defendant, on or about the
26" day of July, 2011, and before the presentment of this indictment, in
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the County and State aforesaid, did then and there engagg‘yﬁ'fraﬁa%
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connection with the offer for sale and sale of common stock of SERVERGY,

INC., being a security to wit: stock, @ JOEL HOCHBERG heremafter

—_— T —

styled the complainant, in an amount involving $100,000 or more, by
intentionally failing to disclose to the complainant, to wit: that WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, JR. had not, in fact, personally invested in
SERVERGY, INC., and that WARREN KENNETH PAXTON, JR. would
be compensated, and had, in fact, received compensation from
SERVERGY, INC,, in the form of 100,000 shares of SERVERGY, INC.
stock, the said information being material fact,

AGAINST THE PEACE AND DIGNITY OF THE STATE.
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FOREMAN OF THE GRAND JURY

7/;%/
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THE STATE OF TEXAS grw

V.
WARREN KENNETH PAXTON, JR.

IN THE 416™ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF COLLIN COUNTY. TEXAS

BOND:

OFFENSE: In connection with the sale, offering for sale or delivery of, the
purchase, offer to purchase, invitation of offers to purchase, invitations of
offers to sell, or dealing in any other manner in any security or securities,
engaging in fraud or fraudulent practice in violation of Texas Securities
Act, Section 29(C)(Byron Cook).
INDICTMENT

IN THE NAME AND BY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

THE GRAND JURY for the County of Collin, State of Texas, duly
selected. impaneled, sworn. charged and organized as such by the 416"
District Court for the said County at the July Term, A.D. 2015 of the said
Court, upon their oaths present in and to said Court that WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, JR., hereinafter styled Defendant, on or about the

26" day of July, 2011, and before the presentment of this 1nd1ctmen1;m1n
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connection with the offer for sale and sale of common stock of SERVERGY,
INC., being a security to wit: stock<_1§b BYRON COOK, hereinafter styled
the complainant, in an amount ;n_\f_(;iV1ng $100,000 or more, by
intentionally failing to disclose to the complainant, to wit: that WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, JR. had not, in fact, personally invested in
SERVERGY, INC,, and that WARREN KENNETH PAXTON, JR. would
be compensated, and had, in fact, received compensation from
SERVERGY, INC., in the form of 100,000 shares of SERVERGY, INC.

stock, the said information being material fact,

AGAINST THE PEACE AND DIGNITY OF THE STATE.
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THE STATE OF TEXAS N
V.
WARREN KENNETH PAXTON, JR.
IN THE 416™ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS

BonNbD:

OFFENSE: Acting as an investment adviser representative without being
registered by the Texas Securities Board in violation of Texas Securities
Act, Section 29(1).

INDICTMENT

IN THE NAME AND BY AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

THE GRAND JURY for the County of Collin, State of Texas, duly
selected, impaneled, sworn, charged and organized as such by the 416™
District Court for the said County at the July Term, A.D. 2015 of the said
Court, upon their oaths present in and to said Court that WARREN
KENNETH PAXTON, JR., hereinafter styled Defendant, on or about the
18" day of J uly, 2012 and before the presentment of this indictment, in

the County and State aforesaid, did then and there knowingly and
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!

—

( James and Freddie Henry and the aforesaid WARREN KENNETH

PAXTON, JR., was then and there not duly registered as an investment
adviser representative by and with the Securities Commissioner of the
State of Texas,

AGAINST THE PEACE AND DIGNITY OF THE STATE.
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Ty CLEVENGER

Attorney at Law
1095 Meadow Hill Drive
Lavon, Texas 75166
telephone: 979.985.5289 tyclevenger@yahoo.com
facsimile: 979.530.9523 Texas Bar No. 24034380

March 6, 2015

Mr. Isiah Joshua, Jr., Foreman
199" District Court Grand Jury

Mrs. Dixie Jeffers, Vice Foreman
199" District Court Grand Jury

Re: Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr.
Mr. Isiah and Mrs. Jeffers:

I write to request a grand jury investigation of Kenneth Warren Paxton, Jr.,
formerly of Collin County. By copy of this letter to District Attorney Greg Willis, and for
the reasons set forth below, I request that Mr. Willis recuse his office from any
investigation of Mr. Paxton, who now serves as the Attorney General of Texas.

You are probably familiar with recent press reports about the Travis County
District Attorney's investigation to determine whether Mr. Paxton criminally violated the
Texas Securities Act. On January 29, 2015, Travis County prosecutors announced that
they had determined that venue was improper in Travis County, therefore the case would
be referred to the district attorneys in Dallas County and Collin County.

Later that day, Dallas County District Attorney Susan Hawk announced that
venue was not proper in Dallas County. That, of course, meant venue was only proper in
Collin County. When contacted by the Dallas Morning News, Collin County First
Assistant District Attorney Bill Dobiyanski declined to say whether his office was
investigating Mr. Paxton.

I subsequently spoke with Mr. Dobiyanski myself and received the same answer.
Under the circumstances of this case, that is not an acceptable response. While
prosecutors commonly refuse to acknowledge an investigation when publicity might
jeopardize the case, there is no danger of that here because Travis County publicly
acknowledged the criminal investigation months ago, and most of the facts are already a
matter of public record.

Furthermore, according to a report on the Dallas Morning News website,
Mr. Willis “is a longtime friend of Paxton.” That does not necessitate recusal by law, nor
does it necessarily mean that Mr. Willis is trying to bury the case against his friend.
Nonetheless, his prolonged silence creates the appearance that he wants to let the case die
by keeping matters quiet until the limitations period lapses.



I strongly urge Mr. Willis to recuse his office from the case against Mr. Paxton
and ask Judge Angela Tucker to appoint someone from the Travis County District
Attorney's Office to serve as special prosecutor in Collin County. Since Travis County
has already completed its investigation, there is no need to re-invent the wheel.

Regardless of whether Mr. Willis recuses his office, the grand jury can act
independently to investigate Mr. Paxton. “In consideration of the importance of the place
occupied by the grand jury in our system of government, Texas courts have long
described the grand jury as a separate tribunal, independent of the control of judges
and prosecutors, whose proceedings are secret, vested with broad inquisitorial powers.”
Whittington v. State, 680 S.W.2d 505, 512 (Tex.App. - Tyler 1984, pet. denied). Grand
jurors are free to “act on their own knowledge and ... [are] free to make their
presentments or indictments on such information as they deem satisfactory.” Costello v.
U.S., 350 U.S. 359, 361 (1956), cited with approval in Whittington, 680 S.W.2d at 511.

In other words, the grand jury can investigate and indict Mr. Paxton regardless of
what Mr. Willis does or does not do. And a grand jury in Collin County can certainly
invite the Travis County District Attorney's Office to present the case that it otherwise
would have (but for the lack of venue) presented to a Travis County grand jury.

The grand jury should be aware of the seriousness of the allegations against Mr.
Paxton as well as the overwhelming evidence against him. He has been accused of
violating Chapter 29 of the Texas Securities Act, which declares that violations are a
third-degree felony. The relevant statute states as follows:

Any person who shall... [s]ell, offer for sale or delivery, solicit subscriptions or
orders for, dispose of, invite offers for, or who shall deal in any other manner in
any security or securities without being a registered dealer or agent as in this Act
provided shall be deemed guilty of a felony of the third degree.

Vernon's Ann. Texas Civ. St. Art. 581-29(A). I have attached a copy of an agreed order
dated May 2, 2014 between Mr. Paxton and Texas Securities Commissioner John
Morgan, and frankly I am surprised that Mr. Paxton's lawyer let him sign it. In that order,
Mr. Paxton stipulated that he “solicited three (3) clients for MCM at times when MCM
was a state-registered investment advisor but [Paxton] was not registered as an
investment advisor representative of MCM.”

As I interpret Mr. Paxton's signature on the agreed order, he has stipulated that he
violated Art. 581-29(A). In other words, it appears to me that he has already admitted that
he committed a felony. If so, the agreed order is not only sufficient evidence for an
indictment, but a criminal conviction.

Mr. Paxton's spokesmen have repeatedly claimed that his violation of the statute
was an honest mistake, but that explanation does not hold water. While he was in the
Texas House of Representatives in 2003, Mr. Paxton voted in favor of the statute that
outlawed his conduct. In 2011, while he was a member of the Texas Senate, Mr. Paxton
voted to amend that statute by clarifying that violations are a third-degree felony.



Worse, Mr. Paxton previously violated the same statute in 2004 and 2005, and in
2009 he was sued for violating that statute. Yet he violated it again in 2012, and now he
claims that it was all just a good-faith mistake. This is not plausible.

I recently spoke with John Sloan, the attorney in Longview who sued Mr. Paxton
in 2009, and he said he would be glad to meet with the grand jury if invited. According to
Mr. Sloan, his clients previously were clients of Mr. Paxton, and Mr. Paxton referred
them to his friend's investment company without telling them that he was getting a 30
percent kickback on investment management fees.

Mr. Paxton's spokesmen have repeatedly made issue of the fact that Mr. Sloan has
previously donated to Democrats, but that should be irrelevant. I am a Republican, and I
could not care less what parties Mr. Paxton and Mr. Sloan are affiliated with. The law is
the law, and nobody should be above it, especially not the state's highest ranking law-
enforcement official.

Sincerely,

Ty Clevenger

cc: Grand Jurors,
199" District Court Grand Jury
The Hon. Angela Tucker, Judge
199" District Court
The Hon. Greg Willis, Collin County District Attorney



